
























STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

November 16, 2020 

TO: Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

THROUGH:  Paula Aila, Acting Administrator, Contact & Awards Division 

FROM:  Michelle Hitzeman, HALE Manager 

SUBJECT:   Approval of Lease Award  

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 

Approve the awards of Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Residence Lot Leases to the 
applicants listed below for ninety-nine (99) years, subject to the purchase of the existing 
improvements on the lot by way of a loan or cash. 

DISCUSSION 

Lanai Residential Vacant Lots, Lanai, Hawaii 

NAME                             APPL DATE  LOT NO  TAX MAP KEY  LEASE NO 

Leimomi A. Detillion        08/22/2005  9    (2)-4-9-024:046  12878 

With the execution of the foregoing lease, one (1) single family vacant lot award has been 
completed. 

ITEM NO. C-1 



 

                                                             ITEM NO. C-2 

 

 

HAWAIIAN HOMES COMMISSION 2021 CALENDAR 

January 19, 2021 (Tue) HHC Meeting VideoConference 

January 20, 2021 (Wed)   

February 16, 2021(Tue) HHC Meeting VideoConference 

February 17, 2021(Wed)   

March 15, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

March 16, 2021   

April 19, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

April 20, 2021   

May 17, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

May 18, 2021   

June 21, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

June 22, 2021   

July 19, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

July 20, 2021   

August 16, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

August 17, 2021  

September 20, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

September 21, 2021   

October 18, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

October 19, 2021   

November 15, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 
November 16, 2021    
 

December 20, 2021 HHC Meeting VideoConference 

December 21, 2021   

 
During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Commission will hold virtual meetings consistent with 

the current Governor’s Emergency Supplementary Proclamation in effect. The virtual 
meetings will be live-streamed and can be viewed by link on the DHHL website.  

Pre COVID, the Commission met at least once annually on each of the neighbor islands: 
Hawai’i, Maui, Moloka’i, Lāna’i, and Kauaʻi. The Commission will update its meeting 

schedule if travel in 2021 is scheduled. 



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

C-3

November 16-17, 2020

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO RESIDENTIAL APPLICANTS TO 

PURCHASE A HOME



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Purpose

• Address the Residential Applicant Waiting List

• Provide a mix of housing opportunities that reflect the needs and 
desires of native Hawaiian beneficiaries (DHHL General Plan)

• Opportunity to keep Hawaii lands for native Hawaiians

• Grow the Hawaiian Home Lands Trust one property at a time

• New pilot program distinct from existing homesteading program



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Proposed Pilot Program

• Down payment assistance provided to applicants on the waiting list to 
purchase residential property on Oahu for this pilot

• Beneficiary cannot reapply to DHHL as long as they own the property 
purchased with DHHL funds

• Amount of assistance TBD

• Assistance to be treated as a “second” to be paid back in full at any time 
or upon the sale of the residence

• DHHL retains “first right of refusal” to purchase property if placed for sale 

• Recommend that beneficiary contribution to down payment be required



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Considerations for Pilot Program

ISSUE RESPONSE

Funding Consider a pilot program with $1 million from NHRF for the program 
and additional funds for administrative costs.

Staff Current hiring freeze will likely require program administered through 
fee for service.

Match requirement The applicant should match any funding provided by NHRF with a cap 
on the amount per applicant.  Amount of match is open to discussion 
(50/50, 60/40 or other amount)

Property requirements Must be owner occupant able to qualify for financing.  Pilot program 
limited to Oahu.  Not intended for rentals.

Ready and able to purchase Since fee simple transaction must show ability to purchase through 
loan prequalification, deadlines are rapid.

Deployment of the program Applicants identify an interest in the program, meet criteria, and 
served based on date of application.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Funding Considerations for Pilot Program

Single Family Home Condo

Median Price $880,000.00 $430,000.00

Down Payment of 20% (no mortgage insurance) $176,000.00 $86,000.00

Down Payment of 5% $44,000.00 $21,500.00

Down Payment of 3% $26,400.00 $12,900.00

• Start with $1 million of Native Hawaiian Rehabilitation Funds

• Number of families assisted depends on size of down payment 
provided to each family and beneficiary contribution



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Issues for Discussion

• Can the beneficiary transfer the benefit of the down payment assistance to a member of their 
family (like a transfer of lease)?

• Should the program be limited to “first-time homebuyers” (often defined as not owning property for 
3 years prior) or should applicants that currently own property have the opportunity to participate?

• Can down payment assistance be used for condo, town house, leasehold, coop residential 
purchases or should it be limited only to single family in this pilot?

• What impact will the second mortgage securing DHHL funds have on the beneficiary if they want 
to do future home equity lines of credit or financing?  Can it be a deed restriction?  Can the 
beneficiary pay it back at any time and be released from the obligation or only upon sale?

• Should there be additional considerations to limit risk to the trust if loans default?  Minimum Loan 
to Value (LTV) ratios of debt to value?  Credit score of applicant?



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Next Steps

• HHC feedback incorporated via Budget Approval (estimated 
December 2020)

• Begin process to secure vendor to implement Pilot Program

• Following selection of vendor, brief the HHC on workplan and 
timeframe

• Require vendor to evaluate pilot program, recommend necessary 
steps to implement future program if warranted.



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – OFFICE OF THE CHAIR

Mahalo

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov













































































































































DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION

D-13

November 17, 2020

DHHL LOAN PRODUCTS



Lending on DHHL Lands

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended
§208. Conditions of Lease (6)
Notwithstanding the provisions of paragraph (5) the lessee, with 

the consent and approval of the commission, may mortgage or 
pledge the lessee’s interest in the tract or improvements 
thereon to a recognized lending institution authorized to do 
business as a lending institution in either the State or 
elsewhere in the United States; provided the loan secured by a 
mortgage on the lessee’s leasehold interest is insured or 
guaranteed by the Federal Housing Administration, 
Department of Veteran’s Affairs, or any other federal agency 
and their respective successors and assigns, which are 
authorized to insure or guarantee such loans, or any 
acceptable private mortgage insurance as approved by the 
commission. 



Lending on DHHL Lands

Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended 
(cont’d)

§208. Conditions of Lease (6)
The mortgagee’s interest in any such mortgage shall be freely 

assignable. Such mortgages, to be effective, must be 
consented to and approved by the commission and recorded 
with the department. 



Lending on DHHL Lands
DHHL has a variety of different lending programs

• DHHL Direct loans and advances
• Per HHCA, DHHL loans restricted to ½ of FHA County limit 

• DHHL Guaranteed loans
• US Dept. of Agriculture - Rural Development

• US Veterans Affairs

• Office of Hawaiian Affairs

• City & County of Honolulu

• Hawaii Habitat for Humanity

• US Small Business Administration (disaster loans)

• Others (FCUs, other non-profits, & local government)

• Conventional Loans (ASB, BOH, & HNB) w/Private Mortgage Insurance
• HUD’s 184A guaranteed and FHA 247 insured loans

Total Portfolio: 4,800+ loans totaling ≈ $611 million



Lending on DHHL Lands

FHA Mortgage Limits By County (as of 1/1/20):

• Hawaii - $391,000
• Honolulu - $721,050
• Kalawao - $690,000
• Kauai - $713,000
• Maui - $690,000



Lending on DHHL Lands

HUD 184A Loans (created in May of 2006)

• Loans guaranteed by HUD-ONAP (Office of Native American 
Programs)

• BOH, Homestreet, and Homebridge originate and 
service 184A loans

• Bank2 and PennyMac only service 184A loans
• Lessee pays 1% guaranty fee



Lending on DHHL Lands

HUD 184A Loans (cont’d)

Loan-to-Value ratios:
• Purchase – 97.75%
• Cash out refinance – 85% LTV and limited to $25,000 

cash out to borrower (debt consolidation allowed)
• Streamline and/or Rate Term refinance – LTV ratios not 

applicable



Lending on DHHL Lands

HUD 184A Loans (cont’d)
Loans Outstanding (as of 6/30/20):
• Bank of Hawaii: 157 loans ~ $35.5 million
• Bank2: 57 loans ~ $11.9 million
• Homebridge: 8 loans ~ $1.8 million
• Homestreet Bank: 106 loans ~ $24.5 million
• PennyMac: 203 loans ~ $42.7 million

• TOTAL: 531 loans ~ $116.4 million



184A Loans

• Defaulted Loans
• If a loan is defaulted upon, servicing lender 

requests a “Demand for Payment” to HUD to 
honor the guaranty

• HUD then reassigns mortgage to DHHL for 
servicing/cancellation

• As of 10/31/20
• DHHL servicing 5 loans (~ $1.4 million)



184A Buyback Loans

• MOU states DHHL has one (1) year from 
assignment of mortgage date to cancel lease.

• If the lease is cancelled, DHHL is to repay HUD the 
lesser of the outstanding balance or the appraised 
value with trust funds and DHHL is reimbursed 
with funds from the re-awarding of the lease (no 
contingent liability to DHHL)

• However, if the lease is not cancelled, DHHL is to 
repay HUD the entire amount paid to the lender 
and any additional accrued interest and fees 
(subsequent deficiency balance becomes a DHHL 
liability)



Lending on DHHL Lands

FHA 247 Insured Loans (created in July of 1987)

• Loans insured by HUD-FHA (Federal Housing 
Administration)

• Lessees pay 3.8% one-time upfront insurance premium
• No monthly insurance premium 

• Loans approved and serviced by participating lenders
• Any FHA approved lender



Lending on DHHL Lands

FHA 247 Insured Loans (cont’d)
Loan-to-Value ratios:
• Purchase – 96.5% (can exceed 100% with Mortgage 

Insurance Premium being financed)
• Cash out refinance – 75% (debt consolidation not 

allowed)
• Home Improvement refinance – 85% (all proceeds in 

excess of existing payoff amount must be used for home 
repairs/renovations)

• Streamline and/or Rate Term refinance – LTV ratios not 
applicable



Lending on DHHL Lands

FHA 247 Loans (cont’d)
HUD report as of 8/31/20:
• Total Portfolio – 2,822 loans (36 loan servicers) for 

$462.3 million 
• Largest Servicers:

• PennyMac Loan Services – 672 loans; $117.5 million
• Homestreet Bank – 522 loans; $89.4 million
• Guild Mortgage – 295 loans; $64.2 million
• Loancare LLC – 219 loans; $42 million



Lending on DHHL Lands

FHA 247 Loans (cont’d)
HUD report as of 8/31/20:
• Delinquency 

• 352 loans ~ $59.6 million delinquent (12.5%)
• PennyMac Loan Services: 88 loans ~ $17.9 million
• Homestreet Bank: 59 loans ~ $11.8 million
• Nationstar Mortgage: 28 loans ~ $2.9 million
• Loancare LLC: 26 loans ~ $5.3 million



FHA 247 Buyback Loans

• Defaulted Loans
• If a loan is defaulted upon, servicing lender 

files an insurance claim with HUD
• HUD then reassigns mortgage to DHHL for 

servicing
• As of 9/30/20
• DHHL servicing 157 loans (~ $19 million)

• 125 loans ~ $16.8 million are 180 days or 
more delinquent



Lending on DHHL Lands: 
FHA – How is it supposed to work?



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS – HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION

Mahalo

www.dhhl.hawaii.gov





DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

KAUAI ISLAND
Project  Updates

JOINT
PLANNING OFFICE 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION
Item E-1 Workshop
November 16, 2020



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

DHHL – USDA RD
Anahola Farm Lots Water 

System Improvements

46 Farm Lots

31 Bayview 
Residence Lots

Anahola Farm Ph 1

Anahola Farm Ph 2



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

FUNDS AWARDED BY USDA RD
(Accepted by HHC, Nov. 2018)

USDA 2016 FUNDING PACKAGE

DHHL CONTRIBUTION $3,770,723
USDA GRANT $3,055,137

SUBTOTAL $6,825,860

USDA 2018 FUNDING PACKAGE ADDS:

USDA LOAN $4,100,000
USDA GRANT $1,999,946

SUBTOTAL $6,099,946

GRAND TOTAL      $12,955,806



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

ANAHOLA FARM LOTS WATER SYSTEM
IMPROVEMENTS

Phase 1:
Kaiwa Construction: $3,196,408

• Replacement of transmission and distribution lines
• Improvement of pressure in mauka and makai lots
• Upgrades to meters and backflow preventers
• Upgrades to fire protection

Construction commencement:  Feb. 2020
Expenditure to Date:  est $1.2M
Completion of Phase 1: est. May 2021



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

ANAHOLA FARM LOTS WATER SYSTEM
IMPROVEMENTS

Phase 2:
Kiewit Infrastructure West Co.: $ 6,692,786

• New concrete water tank
• Pump station upgrades

Construction commencement:  Dec. 2020

Completion of Phase 2: est. Nov. 2022



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

ANAHOLA FARM LOTS WATER SYSTEM



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Improving 
Field #1 
Kealia

Reservoir
Unregulated 

Field #3 
Kealia

Reservoir 

Removing 
Lower 

Anahola
Reservoir

Improving 
Upper 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Anahola Dam & Reservoir Improvements

Removing 
Field #2 
Kealia

Reservoir

• $3.0 Million Legislative Appropriation for Dam Improvements
• New design engineer procured in early 2019
• Demolition of Field #2 and Lower Anahola completed Nov. 2020



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Improving 
Field #1 
Kealia

Reservoir
Unregulated 

Field #3 
Kealia

Reservoir 

Removing 
Lower 

Anahola
Reservoir

Improving 
Upper 

Anahola 
Reservoir

Anahola Kuleana Lot Settlement Plan

Removing 
Field #2 
Kealia

Reservoir

• Proposed Anahola Kuleana Pastoral and Subsistence Ag Lots
• Draft EA  published May 2020;
• Assess Kealia Field #1 for Kuleana lots
• Reassess Upper Anahola improvements
• Additional design funds required for redesign for improvements 

or removal.
• Final EA anticipated to be completed 2nd Quarter 2021

Kuleana Lot Area
Settlement Area



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

ANAHOLA KULEANA LOT SETTLEMENT



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

PI’ILANI MAI KE KAI



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Lot Assessment, Preparation for award
& Offering in Progress

(Anahola – Piilani Mai Ke Kai Phases 1 & 2)

Phase 1

Phase 2 (51 Lots) 

Phase 3 – Planned lots and roadway is impacted by 
“wetlands determination”                         per USFAW

HUD Environmental 
Record awaiting HUD 
approval.  No wetlands 
determined.

3 lots for Offer
10 lots in process

(80 Lots)



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Legislative 
Appropriation:  

$1,000,000 
(Planning & Design)

Masterplan & EA 
completed.

Phase 2, 75 new 
residential lots onsite 
infrastructure Design 

funds of $300,000 
required

47 occupied 
residential 

homestead  lots.
Consolidation 

and resubdivision 
to commence in 

early 2020, 
subject to .
additional 

$100,000 for 
surveying and 

design

Phase 2 Homestead lots

HANAPEPE MASTERPLAN AND ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Puʻu ʻŌpae Kuleana Homestead Lots



DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS - LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

Puʻu ʻŌpae Kuleana Homestead Lots

• Final EA approved by the HHC in July 2020
• KIUC has agreement with DHHL to make following improvements:

• Ditch and transmission line improvements
• Repair 3 existing reservoirs
• Roadway improvements

• KIUC currently going through HRS 343 EA process





To: 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

November 16-17, 2020 

Through: 

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

Peter "Kahana" Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator \IN'--< 
Land Management Division 11/' 

From: Shelly Carreira, Land Agent 
Land Management Division 

Subject: Approval to Issue a Right of Entry to Hawaiian Telcom, Makuu, Island of Hawaii, 
TMKS: 3) l-5-119:051, (3) l-5-118:048, (3) 1-5-120:036, (3) l-5-121:046 

APPLICANT: 

Hawaiian Telcom, "PERMITTEE" 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

1. That the Hawaiian Homes Commission (HHC) grant its approval to issue an Right of Entry (ROE)
permit to Hawaiian Telcom for approximately 46.011 acres (more or less) of Hawaiian home lands
under TMKS: (3) 1-5-119:051, (3) 1-5-118:048, (3) 1-5-120:036, (3) 1-5-121:046 for non-exclusive
roadway easement access for utility purposes and to upgrade its existing infrastructure.

2. Authorize the issuance of a Right of Entry permit to PERMITTEE covering the subject area under the
terms and conditions cited below, which are by this reference incorporated herein and further subject
to the following:

A. The standard terms and conditions of the most current right of entry permit form, as may be
amended from time to time;

B. The term of the Right of Entry shall be month to month for up to twelve (12) months,
commencing upon execution of the right of entry document and terminating at the end of the
twelve ( 12) month period or upon execution of a license disposition, whichever date occurs
sooner;

C. The fee for the term of this ROE shall be gratis;

D. Processing and documentation fee, $175.00 shall be waived;

E. Such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed by the Hawaiian Homes Commission to
best serve the interest of the Hawaiian Home Lands Trusts;

3. Declare that, after considering the potential effects of the proposed disposition as provided by Chapter
343, HRS, and Chapter 11-200, HAR this project will probably have minimal or no significant effect
on the environment.

ITEM NO. F-1 



LOCATION: 
Portion of Hawaiian home lands situated in Makuu, Island of Hawaii, identified as TMK: (3) 1-5-
119:051, (3) 1-5-118:048, (3) 1-5-120:036, (3) 1-5-121:046, and further shown in Exhibit "A". 

AREA: 
46.01 I acres 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
On July I, 1994, License No. 288 was executed between Hawaiian Electric Company, Inc. and GET 
Hawaiian Telcorn, and the Department of Hawaiian Horne Lands (DHHL) for the purpose of bringing 
utility infrastructure and service to the Makuu region. The license predates the formal subdivision of the 
Makuu Lots and recognized the easement area along the major roadway and the Makuu parcel as a whole. 

The DHHL is in the process of updating the terms of its license with Hawaiian Telcom and discussions 
are ongoing but not complete. Approval of the interim right of entry will allow Hawaiian Telcom to 
upgrade its existing infrastructure within the Makuu subdivision and provide additional time needed for 
DHHL to finalize the license instrument that will cover the Makuu region and replace this right of entry 
permit. 

Staff is recommending a gratis fee and a waiver of the processing and documentation fee given the direct 
benefit this upgrade will have on the existing Makuu subdivision and the homesteads in that region. 

CONSISTENCY W[TH DHHL PLANS, POLICIES AND PROGRAMS 
The recommended disposition is consistent with the following plans, policies, and programs: 

I) Hawaii Island Plan, May 2002
• Land Use Designation: Subsistence Agriculture, Supplemental Agriculture, Community,

Commercial, Residential, January 2002, Figure 5, East Hawaii 2. (See Exhibit "B")

2) Regional Plan: Makuu Regional Plan dated December 20 I 0, Priority Project: Infrastracture -
Utilities, under Telephone Service, which states, "The Makuu Farm Lots are currently serviced by
Hawaiian Telcom. They provide regular phone service and dial-up internet connection to the
community. Fiber-optic cable is not available within the Farm Lots." In addition, " Due to the
establishment of the Makuu community in the mid 1980s, service via SIC is not available." (See
Exhibit "C")

CHAPTER 343 ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT: 
In accordance with the Department of Hawaiian Home Lands Comprehensive Exemption List as 
Reviewed and Concurred Upon by the Environmental Council on June 30, 2015, the Right of Entry 
permit request is exempt from the preparation of an environmental assessment pursuant to Exemption 
Class #2, 3a. "Replacement, reconstruction, alteration, modification (no change in use), or installation of 
utility services, including, but not limited to: a. Water, wastewater, drainage, electrical, communications, 
telecommunications, control systems including SCADA systems, security, fire protection, air 
conditioning, odor, irrigation, and fuel systems, subject to compliance with all applicable permitting 
requirements, including State Depaiiment of Health requirements." 

RECOMMENDATION 
Land Management Division recommends approval of the requested motion/action as stated. 

2 ITEM NO. F-1 



Hawaiian Home !Lands 

1 �5-118:048. Hawaiian Home Lands 

1-5-120:036 Hawaiian Home· !Lands 

1�5-121:046 Hawaiian1 Home Lands 

EXHIBIT '!A" 
AGENDA ITEM NO.F-1 



e� 
,_; 

i) 

'OLA'A 

/

00,<v�--�-------

... � � 

- C 

-pr�
,?; 

j 

�-

'\. 
·\.. 

,. '1:;, 
'�:,, •• :s'o�,,, 

"'· ':1',.· �-S-o:., :9!Sl, ,,� 

N 

d. 

�' 
ca� -.. 
t:: � 
00 E--1- �

'. 
�EPOKO �.UI, 

''<\ 
'\' 

'\\ ,, '

:c <�

�-
t;S� 

�

MAKAI 
MAKU'U 

Figure 5 

EASTHAWAI'I2

\,"'\

"---�>"'---,

Leg_end 

Land Use Categories 

- Commercial
- Community Use
- Conservation
� General Agriculture 
- Industrial

Pastoral
Residential

W Special District 
- Subsistence Agriculture 

Supplemental Agriculture 

HAW AI'I LAND INVENTORY 
DEPARTMENT or HA WAJIAN HOME LANDS 

IIO,-H LINEt,L &:,\LE (FEET) 

mu 

ISLAND OF HAWAl'I 

'i II 
JANUARY 2002 



EXHIBIT "C' 
AGENDA ITEM NO. F-1 



0/eclr.icaf Oeru.ice 

The Hawai'i Electric Ligh1 Company, Inc. (HELCO), supplies electricity for the County. HELCO 
purchases a total of 112 megawatts of ftrm power from three privately-owned companies Hilo Coast 
Power Company (coal at 22 megawatts), Hnmakua Energy Pnrtners (60 megawatts) and Puna Geo1hermal 
Venture (geothennal at 30 megawatts). These companies' power plants are located at Keahole, North 
Kona; Wnimea, Sm11h Kohala; Wai5kea Peninsula and Kanoelehua, South Hilo; and Keu'au, Puna. 
HELCO owns four hydroelectric units and a wind farm that provide energy to the system. 

There ure two levels of transmission voltages to transfer power between ureas on the Big Island. The 
main transmission voltage is 69kV. HELCO has four 69kV cross-island transmission lines. One line is 
the southern line connecting 1he Knnoelehun substation to West Hawai 'i via the Kefilia substation along 
Highway 11 through the Puna and Ka'(i District�. The other transmission voltage is 13.8kV that includes 
three tie-lines in Hilo connecting the Shipman nnd K1111oelehun power plants. HELCO uses 34.5kV as n 
sub-transmission voltage and three lines are used to service the Puna, Ka'il and North Kohaln areas. The 
existing distribution system consists of several differen1 voltage levels: 2.4kV, 4. I 6kV, 7 .2kV, I 2.47kV 
nnd 13.SkV. Distribution substations, which 1rnnsfonn voltages to distribution voltages, are also located 
island-wide in proximity to communities nnd other developments. 

The Maku'u Farm and Agriculture lots are supported by a 12.47 kV distribution subsiarion located in the 
Hawaiian Parodise Park Subdivision. The electrical lines within the Maku'u Farm and Agriculture lots are 
single-phase, 7.2 kV voltage levels: however there are no electrical lines past parcel 11, therefore likely 
supported by genera1ors. 

9as 

Propane gas is widely used in residential and commercial facilities on the island of Hawai 'i. In some rural 
areas of the County, gas is the only source of the power. The Public Utilities Commission (PUC) regulates 
67 miles of gas mains and service lines on the Big Island. Most of these lines are located in Hilo. Gas 
service is also provided by tank or cylinder. This type of service is not regulated by the PUC. 

In[!astructure - Utilities 

'Jelepfione cSeruice 

The Maku ·u Fann Lots are currently serviced by Hawaiian Telcom. They provide regular phone 
service and dial-up Internet connection to the community. Fiber-optic cable is 11111 available within 
1he Fann Lots. Several lessees have inquired with Hawaiian Telcom regarding DSL access. 
Although Hawaiian Telcom has DSL capabilities along Kea'au-Pahoa Road, they are unable to 
service the community without upfront payment to cover the costs 10 install infrastructure necessary 
for high speed Internet access. It is anticipated that the ins1allntion cost would be in excess of 
$30,000. Sandwich Isles Communications, Inc. (SIC) currently provides fiber-oplic telephone 
service and high speed Internet to new devdopments on DHHL land-holdings. SIC is not currently 
authorized by the utilities commission to provide service to homesteads developed prior to 1998. 
Due to the establislunent of the Maku 'u community in the mid 1980s. service via SIC is not available. 

Cable 'Jefeu.isio11 cSeru.ice 

The Puna district is within the Oceanic Time Warner Cable (Oce,mic) service area. However, lhe 
Maku 'u farn1 lots are not currently serviced by Oceanic. Twelve families indicated their desire 
to conncc1 to Oceanic service. Oceanic has indicated that more than 12 fomilies ure necessary for 
connection to be provided. 

0:xislii1_<J cSewer Otis/em 

At present, most residents in the Puna district are served by individual sewerage systems. The use of 
cesspools and individual household aerobic treatment units will probably be continued until such time 
us increased population distribution and densities muke it economically feasible to install municipal 
sewerage systems. Residences near the coastal areas are much more vulnerable to unsatisfactory 
results with individual disposal systems due to the inOuence of tidal surges on the ground water 
table. The close proximity of the groundwater table reduces the efficiency of individual disposal 
systems because there is less filtration that can occur before the eftluenl reaches the ground water. 
This reduced efficiency may also affect the quality of near shore waters due to the reduced filtration. 
The Maku'u Farmers' Association has indicated they are against the installation of n municipal 
wastewater treatment plant within DH.HL lands in the region. 

\. ;. 
� 

.... •. 

' 

t' 
MAKU'U ■· 20 :·:'·. R E Ci 1 0 :-I A I. I' I. A N . .· 



To:

STATE OF HAWAII

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS

November 16-17, 2020

From:

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission

Peter "Kahana" Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator
Land Management Division �

Subject: Approval of Revised Application & Review Process for New Revocable Permit
Pilot Program

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission approve LMD's October 19-20, 2020, Agenda Item No.
F-2, under the subject title referenced above and further attached hereto as Exhibit "A", which
was deferred so that staff could prepare and present a workshop to Commissioners for better
understanding of the proposed Revocable Permit Pilot Program Process.

DISCUSSION

The Hawaiian Homes Commission had in the past issued position statements on the issuance
of Revocable Permits, based on the statutory authorities granted. The following statements are
still valid and prudent and are recommended to be incorporated into the new program.

1) All available Hawaiian home lands that are not immediately required for native
Hawaiian homesteading, general leasing, and/or other purposes for long-term
durations shall be available to the general public for month-to-month tenancy through
the issuance of revocable permits;

2) Supplements DHHL's annual revenue from available lands through good land
management practices conducted on lands utilized by way of revocable permits;

3) Reduce the acreage of available lands utilized under revocable permits; and

4) Authorize the Chairman to amend and terminate Revocable Permits (HHC to
approve new RP issuance)

Once approval is granted for the Proposed Revocable Permit Program by the Hawaiian Homes
Commission, LMD will collaborate with the Planning Office to coordinate and conduct
informational meetings statewide to inform beneficiaries and tenants of DHHL on this new
program.

AUTHORITY

Authority to Issue Revocable Permits 

► Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended, Section 204(a)(2)

ITEM NO. F-2



November 2020 

ITEM NO. F-2 2 

 Hawaii Revised Statutes, Chapter 171, Section 171-55, Permits, as amended

 Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 10, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, Chapter 4,
Management of Hawaiian Home Lands, Subchapter 1, Land Management, Section 10-4-
1 Lease of Lands.

RECOMMENDATION 

Land Management Division respectfully recommends approval of the motions as stated for the 
following reasons: 

• Provide greater transparency and fairness to the DHHL’s beneficiaries and the general
public;

• Improve efforts to ensure the safe, appropriate, and approved use of Hawaiian home
lands; and

• Strengthen DHHL’s ability to carry its mission in service to its native Hawaiian
beneficiaries.



albipk
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"Agenda Item No. F-2November 2020



To: 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

October 19-20, 2020 

From: 

Chairman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

Peter "Kahana" Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator 

Subject: 

Land Management Division �
Approval of Revised Application & Review Process for New Revocable Permit 
Pilot Program 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission rescind its approval of LMD's December 17-18, 2018, 
Agenda Item No. F-4, titled, Approval of Application & Review Process for New Revocable 
Permit Pilot Program (see attached Exhibit "A") and RE-APPROVE LMD's Revised Application 
& Review Process for New Revocable Permit Pilot Program as described below: 

The New Revocable Permit Program 

The basic program will include the following steps: 

1) PARCEL LIST

a) Identification of non-homestead parcel(s) that is/are suitable for disposition on a
month-to-month basis. 

b) Establish the proper method of determining appropriate rent(s) for the identified
parcel(s), by considering the following methods: 

Prudent in-house analysis of the fair market rent through either 
• Market Comparison Analysis
• Rate of Return

Independent Fair Market Summary Appraisal 
Due to nature of short-term disposition and other limiting factors (access, 
infrastructure, inability to obtain financing, etc.) a 50% discount would be 
applied to the base land rate as determined. 

2) APPLICATION

a) New Permitting System, not founded on a "first come, first served" basis, for lands
envisioned to be developed within a 20-year timeframe. 

• Implement transparent solicitation process for disposition that is available to
native Hawaiians and the public at large. 

• Provide parcel details as follows: TMK; Location; Land Area; Proposed permitted
use; Rent; Terms, etc. 

ITEM NO. F-2 



October 2020 

ITEM NO. F-2 2 

3) SCORING CRITERIA – Criterion Guide Attached as Exhibit (B)

a) Establish proof of the necessary experience and ability to be able to maintain
proposed use: To meet this criterion applicant must demonstrate each of the
following: (50 Points Total)

• (20 Points) - Proof of work in such capacity that will demonstrate knowledge
and/or experience in the specific field/area of the use as proposed in the State of
Hawaii for not less than two of the last five years.  This is best established by
submittal of a business/personal resume and/or tax returns for years as
determined by DHHL.  and.  If only tax returns or business/personal resume is
submitted applicant would receive Points to be awarded as follows: 1 yr of tax
returns = 5 points; 2 yrs. of tax returns = 10 points; Updated resume for the
business/individual = 10 points.

• (10 Points) - Proof of current Certificate of Good Standing issued by the State of
Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs.  This is best established
by providing a current Certificate of Good Standing copy as issued by the State
of Hawaii, DCCA.

• (10 Points) - Proof of history as excellent tenant on State and/or other private
owned lands; no termination or enforcement action against applicant within the
last 5 years.  This is best established by submittal of professional references.
Two (2) references = 4 points; Three (3) references = 6 points; Four (4)
references = 8 points; Five (5) references =10 points.

• (10 Points) - Proof of written understanding and acknowledgement that
proposed use is exempt from preparing an Environmental Assessment under
HRS Chapter 343, per DHHL’s June 30, 2015 exemption list as approved by the
Environmental Council which shall demonstrate knowledge and/or personal
experience in dealing with federal, state, and county regulations and other
agencies governing such use. Points awarded as follows: applicant submits
acknowledgement form that the business/individual understands and is aware of
the State HRS Chapter 343 and the DHHL Environmental Exemption list = 5
points; Applicant Provides written statement on personal experience in dealing
with government entities governing such use = 5 points

b) Upset minimum Rent ($) Proposal.  To meet this criterion applicant must
demonstrate each of the following: (50 Points Total)

• (10 Points) – Proposed upset rent

• (10 Points) – Proof of financial capability to pay rent that is consistent, and on-
time based on proposed upset minimum rent.  Proof of means to deposit with
DHHL an amount equal to two (2) times the proposed monthly rental as a
security deposit including the first month’s rent payable on or before the first day
of the month the permit is to be executed.  Points to be awarded as follows: Tax
Return info to be reviewed; maximum of 5 points to be awarded based on tax



October 2020 

ITEM NO. F-2 3 

return(s) submitted – 5 points for 2 yrs of tax return filing submitted; 3 points for 1 
yr of tax return filing submitted.  Security Deposit amount – 5 points if Cashiers 
Check is submitted; 3 points if personal check is submitted 

• (10 Points) – Proof of procuring, and maintaining, at its own cost and expense,
in full force and effect throughout the term of the permit, general liability
insurance with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of
Hawaii in an amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 for each occurrence and
$2,000,000.00 in the aggregate and name the State of Hawaii, Department of
Hawaiian Home Lands as additional insured.  Points to be awarded as follows:
Copy of any current Certificate of Insurance for existing business/location if any =
5 points; Letter from Insurance Company that states they will issue insurance
coverage to entity when required = 5 points.

• (20 Points) – Proof of work experience that demonstrates in writing how
applicant’s proposal would benefit native Hawaiians, directly and indirectly.
Points to be awarded as follows: Support letter(s) from Native Hawaiian
Organizations (OHA, Civic Clubs, etc) – 5 points for two support letters; 10 points
for 3 or more support letters; Current Hawaiian Homestead Lessee(s) and/or
Waitlister(s) employed by business (DHHL to verify list of names if provided; if
verified) 5 points for 1-5 employees; 10 points for 6 or more employees

4) Award

a) Process ensures more consistent decisions

• Applicant with highest combined score (100pts max) would be awarded the
Revocable Permit disposition

• In the event of a tie, the award will be determined by a drawing of those
Applicants with highest combined scores.

5) Renewal

a) Re-application keeps tenants accountable

DISCUSSION 

The Hawaiian Homes Commission had in the past issued position statements on the issuance 
of Revocable Permits, based on the statutory authorities granted.  The following statements are 
still valid and prudent and are recommended to be incorporated into the new program. 

1) All available Hawaiian home lands that are not immediately required for native
Hawaiian homesteading, general leasing, and/or other purposes for long-term
durations shall be available to the general public for month-to-month tenancy through
the issuance of revocable permits;



October 2020 

ITEM NO. F-2 4 

2) Supplements DHHL’s annual revenue from available lands through good land
management practices conducted on lands utilized by way of revocable permits;

3) Reduce the acreage of available lands utilized under revocable permits; and

4) Authorize the Chairman to amend and terminate Revocable Permits (HHC to
approve new RP issuance)

Once approval is granted for the Proposed Revocable Permit Program by the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission, LMD will collaborate with the Planning Office to coordinate and conduct 
informational meetings statewide to inform beneficiaries and tenants of DHHL on this new 
program. 

AUTHORITY 

Authority to Issue Revocable Permits 

 Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended, Section 204(2)

 Hawaii Revised Statutes, Chapter 171, Section 171-55, Permits, as amended

 Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 10, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, Chapter 4,
Management of Hawaiian Home Lands, Subchapter 1, Land Management, Section 10-4-
1 Lease of Lands.

RECOMMENDATION 

Land Management Division respectfully recommends approval of the motions as stated for the 
following reasons: 

• Provide greater transparency and fairness to the DHHL’s beneficiaries and the general

public;

• Improve efforts to ensure the safe, appropriate, and approved use of Hawaiian home

lands; and

• Strengthen DHHL’s ability to carry its mission in service to its native Hawaiian

beneficiaries.



albipk
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"ITEM NO. F-2



To: 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF HAWAIIAN HOME LANDS 

December 17-18, 2018 

Chailman and Members, Hawaiian Homes Commission 

From: Peter "Kahana" Albinio, Jr., Acting Administrator 
Land Management Division vJ,.< 

Subject: Approval of Application & Review Process for New Revocable Permit Pilot 
Program 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

That the Hawaiian Homes Commission grants its approval to the Application & Review Process 
for New Revocable Permit Program as shown on Exhibit "A." 

DISCUSSION 

Authority to Issue Revocable Permits 

► Hawaiian Homes Commission Act, 1920, as amended, Section 204(2)

► Hawaii Revised Statutes, Chapter 171, Section 171-55, Permits, as amended

► Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 10, Department of Hawaiian Home Lands, Chapter 4,
Management of Hawaiian Home Lands, Subchapter 1, Land Management, Section 10-4-1
Lease of Lands.

The New Revocable Permit Program 

The Hawaiian Homes Commission had in the past issued position statements on the issuance of 
Revocable Permits, based on the statutory authorities granted. The following statements are still 
valid and prudent and are recommended to be incorporated into the new program. 

1) All available Hawaiian home lands that are not immediately required for native

Hawaiian homesteading, general leasing, and/or other purposes for long-term
durations shall be available to the general public for month-to-month tenancy through
the issuance of revocable permits;

ITEM NO. F-4 



December 2018 

2) Supplements DHHL's annual revenue from available lands through good land
management practices conducted on lands utilized by way of revocable permits;

3) Reduce the acreage of available lands utilized under revocable permits; and

4) Authorize the Chairman to amend and terminate Revocable Permits (HHC to approve
new RP issuance)

The basic program will include the following steps: 

1) PARCEL LIST

a) Identification of non-homestead parcel(s) that are suitable for disposition on a month
to-month basis.

b) Establish the proper method of determining appropriate rent(s) for the identified
parcel(s), by considering the following methods:

Prudent in-house analysis of the fair market rent through either 
• Market Comparison Analysis
• Rate of Return

Independent Fair Market Summary Appraisal 
Due to nature of short-term disposition and other limiting factors (access, 
infrastructure, inability to obtain financing, etc.) a 50% discount would be 
applied to the base land rate as determined. 

2) APPLICATION

a) New Permitting System, not founded on a "first come, first served" basis, for lands
envisioned to be developed within a 20-year timeframe.

• Implement a competitive process for disposition that 1s available to native
Hawaiians and the public at large.

• Provide parcel details as follows: TMK; Location; Land Area; Proposed permitted
use; Rent; Terms, etc.

3) SCORING CRITERIA

a) Establish proof of the necessary experience and ability to be able to maintain
proposed use: To meet this criterion applicant must demonstrate each of the
following: (50 Points Total)

• (20 Points) - Proof of work in such capacity that will demonstrate knowledge
and/or experience in the specific field/area of the use as proposed in the State of

2 ITEM NO. F-4 



December 2018 

Hawaii for not less than two of the last five years. This is best established by 
submittal of a resume and/or tax return. 

• (10 Points) - Proof of current Certificate of Good Standing issued by the State of
Hawaii Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs. This is best established
by providing a current Certificate of Good Standing copy as issued by the State of
Hawaii, DCCA.

• (10 Points) - Proof of history as excellent tenant on State and/or other private
owned lands; no termination or enforcement action against applicant within the
last 5 years. This is best established by submittal of at least three (3) professional
references.

• (10 Points) - Proof of written understanding and acknowledgement that proposed
use is exempt from preparing and Environmental Assessment under HRS Chapter
343, per DHHL's June 30, 2015 exemption list as approved by the Environmental
Council which shall demonstrate knowledge and/or personal experience in
dealing with federal, state, and county regulations and other agencies governing
such use.

b) Upset minimum Rent ($) Proposal. To meet this criterion applicant must 
demonstrate each of the following: (50 Points Total) 

• (15 Points) - Proof of financial capability to pay rent in a manner that is
consistent, and on-time based on its proposed upset minimum rent. If two or more
proposals exceed the proposed minimum upset rent, the proposal that provides the
highest monetary offer shall receive the maximum point total.

• (10 Points) - Proof of means to deposit with DHHL an amount equal to two (2)
times the proposed monthly rental as a security deposit including the first month's
rent payable on or before the first day of the month the pe1mit is to be executed.

• (10 Points) - Proof of procuring, and maintaining, at its own cost and expense, in
full force and effect throughout the term of the permit, general liability insurance
with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Hawaii in an
amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 for each occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in
the aggregate and name the State of Hawaii, Department of Hawaiian Home
Lands as additional insured.

• (15 Points) - Proof of work experience that demonstrates in wntmg how
applicant's proposal would benefit native Hawaiians, directly and indirectly.

4) Award

a) Process ensures more consistent decisions

3 ITEM NO. F-4 



December 2018 

• Applicant with highest combined score (1 00pts max) would be awarded the
Revocable Permit disposition

5) Renewal

a) Re-application keeps tenants accountable

Once approval is granted for the Proposed Revocable Permit Program by the Hawaiian Homes 
Commission, LMD will collaborate with the Planning Office to coordinate and conduct 
informational meetings statewide to inform beneficiaries and tenants of DHHL on this new 
program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Land Management Division respectfully recommends approval of the motions as stated 
for the following reasons: 

• Provide greater transparency and fairness to the DHHL's beneficiaries and the general

public;

• Improve efforts to ensure the safe, appropriate, and approved use of Hawaiian home

lands; and

• Strengthen DHHL's ability to carry its mission m service to its native Hawaiian

beneficiaries.

4 ITEM NO. F-4 



1

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

Land Management Division

Application & Review Process for 
New Revocable Permit Pilot Program

December 17-18, 2018

Revocable Permit Pilot Program

PURPOSE:
• Revocable Permit allows for presence on DHHL lands thereby reducing

costs for land management activity functions (i.e. signage,
landscaping, fencing, removing trash and derelict vehicles, and
prevents trespassing on unencumbered lands) that DHHL would bear
if the lands were to sit vacant

• Supplements DHHL’s annual revenue from available lands

• Reduces the acreage of available lands utilized under revocable
permits

• Revocable Permits are short-term (30-day month-to-month, annually
renewable), which can be cancelled by DHHL at its sole discretion and
for any reason whatsoever, at any time during the twelve month
period, upon thirty (30) days advance notice in writing to tenant.

albipk
Text Box
  Exhibit "A"Item No. F-4



2

Application & Review Process 
Highlights

Application

Review

Award

Renewal

Process Highlights

Application
Clear Process, Open to All Beneficiaries

Parcel List

1. Identify non-homestead
parcel(s) that are suitable
for disposition on a month-
to-month basis.
2. Establish proper method
of determining appropriate
rent(s)

Application

1. Implement a competitive
process for disposition that
is available to native
Hawaiians and the public at
large.
2. Provide parcel details as
follows: TMK, Location,
Land Area, Proposed
permitted use, rent, terms,
etc.

Scoring Criteria

1. Establish proof of the
necessary experience and
ability to be able to maintain
proposed use.
2. Upset minimum Rent ($)
Proposal



3

Process Highlights

Review
Methodology that Reflects Commission Priorities

Criteria

Criteria to score 
applications that 
reflect priorities

Scoring

Review each 
application and 
score on criteria 

Selection

Select the 
application with the 

highest score 

Process Highlights

Review of Criteria/Scoring
Establish proof of the necessary experience and ability to be able to maintain proposed use:  To 
meet criterion applicant must demonstrate each of the following: (50 Points Total)

• (20 Points) – Proof of work in such capacity that will demonstrate knowledge and/or experience in the 
specific field/area of the use as proposed in the State of Hawaii for not less than two of the last five years.

• (10 points) – Proof of current Certificate of Good Standing issued by the State of Hawaii, DCCA.
• (10 Points) – Proof of history as excellent tenant on State an/or other private owned lands; no termination 

or enforcement action against applicant with the last 5 years. 
• (10 Points) – Proof of written understanding and acknowledgement that proposed use is exempt from 

preparing an Environmental Assessment under HRS Chapter 343, per DHHL’s June 30, 2015 exemption 
list as approved by the Environmental Council which shall demonstrate knowledge and/or personal 
experience in dealing with federal, state, and county regulations and other agencies governing such use.

Upset Minimum Rent ($) Proposal (50 Points Total)

• (15 Points) – Proof of financial capability to pay rent consistently, and on-time based on proposed upset 
rent.

• (10 points) – Proof of means to deposit with DHHL an amount equal to two (2) times the proposed monthly 
rental as a security deposit including the first month’s rent payable on or before the first day of the month 
the permit is executed.

• (10 Points) – Proof of procuring, and maintaining at its own cost and expense, and keeping in full force and 
effect through out the term of the permit a general liability insurance policy as required by DHHL.

• (15 Points) – Proof of work experience that demonstrates in writing how proposal would benefit native 
Hawaiians, directly and indirectly.



4

Process Highlights

Review
Methodology that Reflects Commission Priorities

SelectionScoringCriteria

Necessary experience
and ability to be able to
maintain proposed use

Upset Minimum Rent
($) Proposal

50 points total
• 20 points
• 10 points
• 10 points
• 10 points

50 points total
• 20 points
• 10 points
• 10 points
• 10 points

Rewards qualified 
prospective tenants

Supports applicants 
likely to succeed and 

pay rent

Demonstrates how 
native Hawaiians 

would benefit 
directly/indirectly 

Process Highlights

Award
Approved Process Ensures More Consistent Decisions

Notification

Notify awardees –
and unsuccessful 

applicants

Execution

Finalize and 
execute 

Revocable Permit

Commission

Advise HHC of 
awards to new 

tenants



5

Process Highlights

Renewal
Re-application Keeps Tenants Accountable

Notification

Notify awardees – and 
unsuccessful renewals

Commission

Recommend selected 
renewals for HHC 

approval

Execution

Update and execute 
Revocable Permit 

extensions; update list 
with renewal date

Department of Hawaiian Home Lands

Discussion…



Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting December 17 & 18, 2018, Kapolei, O`ahu, Hawai`i    Page 13 of 17 

• Then the Department waits for the HECO RFP. Entry into a right of entry due diligence
period and HECO will do studies and EAs (in anticipation of a HECO RFP)

Chair Masagatani stated she would be deferring Item F-3 so staff can provide an attachment that 
outlines the process that occurs by steps, so the points are clear that beneficiary engagement is 
intended to happen, where Commission decision will happen and clarify the intention. The 
recommended motion needs to include “that will result in the conclusion of a right of entry.” All 
that is being sought is the authority to go out for the solicitation. The last is the criteria by which 
the proposals are going to be vetted. Commissioners have express specific desires about either 
parcel being excluded or included, at least on this first solicitation. That’s a lot of work between 
now and this afternoon. 

Note: The Commission anticipates convening in an executive meeting pursuant to Section 92-5(a), 
HRS, to discuss portions of Item F-3. 

RECESS 10:35 a.m. 

RECONVENED 10:45 a.m. 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

WORKSHOPS 

HOMESTEAD SERVICES DIVISION 

ITEM D-2 For Information Only – Notification Process to Declaration of Conditions, 
Covenants, and Restrictions (DCCR) Homestead Associations for Lease 
Transfers and Successorships 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
None. For information only. Acting Homestead Services Division Administrator Dean Oshiro and 
O`ahu District Office Supervisor Juan Garcia presented the following: 

DISCUSSION 
Homestead Services Division has six district offices that service over 9,000 residential, 
agricultural, and pastoral homestead leases. Between June 2017 and June 2018 there were 417 
transfers and 373 transfers through successorship. Every lease has the potential to be either 
assigned through a sale of transfer, or a successorship. Islands with DCCRs are O`ahu, Maui, West 
Hawai`i, and Kaua`i. There are others but not organized to the extent of collection of dues.  

LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

ITEM F-4 Workshop on Application & Review Process for Revocable Permit Pilot 
Program 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
Acting Land Management Division Administrator Kahana Albinio and Legislative Analyst Lehua 
Kinilau-Cano presented the workshop on the application and review process for the revocable 
permit pilot program. 

DISCUSSION 
K. Albinio stated there are four purposes for the revocable permit pilot program.

• Presence on the land
• Supplements DHHL’s annual revenue from available lands

albipk
Rectangle



Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting December 17 & 18, 2018, Kapolei, O`ahu, Hawai`i    Page 14 of 17 

• Reduces the acreage of available lands utilized under revocable permits. When there are
huge portions of land, a portion of that parcel is used, reducing the acreage.

• Revocable permits are 30-days month-to-month, which can be canceled anytime by the
Department, at its discretion for any reason.

K. Albinio wants to ensure that the application process is clear and that it’s open to beneficiaries
and the public at large. So, parcels suitable for a month-to-month disposition will be identified,
find a method to determine appropriate rent. The application will provide parcel details. The
scoring will look at the experience and if the beneficiary will be able to maintain the use of the
parcel. Then it goes to the Commission for review, taking into consideration the criteria that reflect
the priorities of the Commission, score according to the criteria, and select based on the highest
score.

ITEMS FOR DECISION MAKING 

REGULAR AGENDA 

LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION 

ITEM F-4 Approval of Application & Review Process for Revocable Permit Pilot 
Program 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION 
Acting Land Management Division Administrator Kahana Albinio and Legislative Analyst Lehua 
Kinilau-Cano presented the following: 
Motion that the Hawaiian Homes Commission grant its approval to the application and review 
process for the new revocable permit pilot program for commercial, industrial use.   

MOTION/ ACTION 
Moved by Commissioner Ishibashi, seconded by Commissioner Awo, to approve the motion as 
stated in the submittal. Motion carried unanimously. 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 

GENERAL AGENDA 

REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE COMMISSION 

ITEM J-5 Bo Kahui – LaʻiʻŌpua 2020 

B. Kahui restated the need for support on delinquent association dues and noted the total amount
of the dues for each lessee.  He again requested the Department to submit a memo to the lessees of
the first two pages to encourage collection. He reiterated the need for a Kona Office.  LaʻiʻŌpua
2020 will be going to the Legislature for $2 million for the North Kona exploratory water well.

ITEM J-3 Princeslehuanani Kamaewakainakaleomomona – Maui Waitlist 

P. Kamaewahainakaleomomona stated, she is giving the Commission the time to tell her what the
best step for her is to take to get on her land.

albipk
Rectangle



New Revocable Permit Program
Scoring Criteria

Parcel Details:

APPLICANT'S NAME:  _________________________________ TMK No. ____________________________________

Date Application Received: ____________________________ Land Area:__________________________________

Location: ___________________________________

A.  Establishing Proof of Necessary Experience and Ability Max Points  SCORE Guideline to Scoring
1. Proof of work in such capacity that will demonstrate knowledge and/or 
experience in the specific field/area of the use as propsoed in the State of 
Hawaii for not less than two of the last five years.  This is best established by 
submittal of a resume and/or current tax returns for year(s) as determined by 
DHHL

20

 * Submit current tax return filing for the business or individual
1 yr = 5 points 
2 yrs = 10 points 

 * Updated resume for the business or individual = 10 points

2. Proof of current Certificate of Good Standing issued by the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce & Consumer Affairs.  This is best established by 
providing a current Certificate of Good Standing copy as issued by the State of
Hawaii, DCCA

10

3. Proof of history as excellent tenant on state and/or other private owned 
lands; no termination or enforcement action against applicant within the last 
five years.  This is best established by submittal of at least five (5) professional
references to receive the maximum points

10

 * Two references =  4 points
Three references = 6 points
Four references = 8 points
Five references = 10 points 

4. Proof of written understanding & acknowledgement that proposed use is
exempt from preparing an Environmental Assessment under HRS Chapter 343,
per DHHL's June 30, 2015 exemption list as approved by the Environmental 
Council which shall demonstrate knowledge and/or personal experience in 
dealing with federal, state, and county regulations and other agencies 
governing such use

10

 * Submit signed acknowledgement form that the business entity or individual understands
and is aware of the State HRS Chapter 343 and the DHHL Environmental exemption list
= 5 points

 * Provide written statement on personal experience in dealing with government entities
governing such use = 5 points

Total Score for A

B.  Establishing Proof of Financial Capability.
1. Proposed upset minimum rent 10 * Applicant(s) bid meets proposed upset minimum rent
2. Proof of financial capability to pay rent in a manner that is consistent, and 
on-time based on proposed upset minimum rent Proof of means to deposit 
with DHHL an amount equal to two (2) times the proposed monthly rent as a 
security deposit inclduing the first month's rent payable on or before the first 
day of the month the permit is to be executed ; 10

 * Tax Return info to be reviewed; maximum of 5 points to be awarded based on tax return
filing submitted
= 5 points for 2 yrs of tax filing submitted
= 3 points for 1 yr of tax filing submitted

 * Security Deposit amount equal to two (2) times the upset bid monthly rent; maximum 5
points to be awarded based on security deposit submitted
= 5 points if Cashier's Check is submitted
= 3 points personal check is submitted

3. Proof of procuring, and maintaining, at its own cost and expense, in full
force and effect throughout the term of the permit, general liability insurance 
with an insurance company authorized to do business in the State of Hawaii in 
an amount of not less than $1,000,000.00 for each occurrence and 
$2,000,000.00 in the aggregate and name the State of Hawaii, Department of 
Hawaiian Home Lands as additional insured

10

 * Copy of any  current Certificate of Insurance coverage for existing business/location
= 5 points

 * Letter from Insurance Company that states they will issue insurance coverage to
entity when required
= 5 points

4. Proof of work experience that demonstrates in writing how applicant's
proposal would benefit native Hawaiians, directly and/or indirectly

20

 * maximum 20 points
Support letters from Native Hawaiian Organizations (OHA, Civic Clubs, etc)
= 5 points for two support letters
= 10 points for three or more support letters
*Current Hawaiian Homestead Lessee(s) and/or Waitlister(s) currently employed by

business (DHHL to verify list of names if provided; if verified)
= 5 points for 1-5 employees
= 10 points for 6 or more employees

Total Score for B

Upset Rent: _________________________________

albipk
Text Box
Exhibit "B"Item No. F-2



















































Hawaiian Homes Commission Meeting 

November 16 & 17, 2020 

 

J AGENDA TESTIMONY 
 

1. J. Kanani Pelekai Kihara – Waiahole  
 

2. Germaine Meyers – Various Concerns 
 

3. Val Dean Castillo – Successorship Issues 
 

4. Velma Mariano – Paukūkalo Hawaiian 
Homestead 

 

5. Kalio Resep – Various 
 

6. Jojo Tanimoto -Kawaihae Issues 



Aloha Ms. Burrows-Nuuanu, 

I am writing on behalf of my friend, Elijah Kane, who spoke to your Commissioners a few months ago.  

We were advised to follow up with you re. questions that we have. 

Here is some background information: 

Elijah's family has lived in Waiahole Valley for several generations and are committed to living and 

farming in the valley.  For the past 11 years, Elijah was actively involved with a non-profit called Pacific 

Culture Institute that had an Ag. 2 lease from Hawaii Housing Finance and Development Corporation.  

Besides farming different crops, they were running an educational and cultural program for at-risk youth 

as well as other students. 

This past February, the lease ended and HHFDC took the property back (approx. 4 acres).  Since then, 

Elijah has been negotiating with HHFDC to secure a long-term lease for this lot. He  also has a short-term 

lease for an adjoining lot (approx. 4 acres). For now, HHFDC is only willing to give a revocable Right to 

Entry agreement. 

Here are the questions for DHHL: 

1) DHHL acquired 20 lots in Waiahole Valley.  According to an on-line report, there were 18 residential

lots, of which 12 are vacant.  However, 7 have leases but nothing has been built.  In addition, there are 2

ag. lots.  We do not know if those are leased.

Question:  Are any of the residential & ag. lots still available for qualified individuals on the DHHL list? 

2) In 2004, an agreement was reached with HHFDC to transfer additional Waiahole Valley lots to DHHL.

It was terminated in 2005 because of community opposition.

Question:  Since then, has there been any discussion with the Waiahole Valley Community Association 

to revisit the issue of having lots transferred to DHHL? 

Question:  Is there documentation/meeting minutes that we can review that outline why community 

members opposed this transfer? 

3) There are limited DHHL housing/land on the Windward side.  Having Waiahole Valley lands

transferred to DHHL would help to address the shortage and allow long term lessees in the valley an

opportunity to have an affordable lease.

Question: What plans are in place to accommodate the dire housing needs of native Hawaiians in the 

Windward District? 

Rationale for considering the transfer of lands in Waiahole Valley, Oahu:  1) Hundreds of acres were 

Kuleana lands that were taken over by McCandless/Marks family. 2) Transfer costs would be less than 

purchasing from a private landowner since it's in the hands of a State agency (HHFDC).  3) Infra-structure 

is already in place (electricity/water/roadways).  4) Community opposition from 2004 can be addressed 

so lessees can see the benefits of having DHHL as the landowner ($1 leases vs. increased lease prices 

when leases expires in 2023). 5) Low cost financing so lessees can repair/replace their homes.       

6) Commitment by DHHL will support and encourage the following generations to live and farm in the

valley. 7) Provide native Hawaiians with opportunities for economic development through diversified

J-1



agriculture and cultural practices. 8) Would restore the values and practices that allowed Hawaiians to 

thrive on the land. 

We understand that DHHL has not met the needs of all native Hawaiians due to your limited resources 

and roadblocks you have faced over the years.  However, we believe that Waiahole Valley lands could be 

a viable option for more housing/ag. lands, especially since many of the lessees are native Hawaiian. 

Your attention to this matter is sincerely appreciated.  Will look forward to hearing from you in the near 

future in order to continue this conversation. 

Mahalo, 

J. Kanani Pelekai Kihara



1

Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W

From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
Sent: Thursday, October 15, 2020 12:46 AM
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: HCC Contact:

First Name  

Germaine  

Last Name  

Meyers  

Phone  

(808) 979-6466

Email  

808hikino@gmail.com  

Subject  

A Request to be on the "J" Agenda  

Message  

10/15/2020 Aloha Leah, 

As instructed, here's my J-Agenda request to address the Commissioners regarding my various Beneficiary Concerns at the 
HHC Meeting in November 2020. 

Mahalo, 
Germaine Meyers 
Nanakuli Hawaiian Homestead Lessee  

J-2



J-4











1

Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W

From: dhhl.icro1@hawaii.gov
Sent: Monday, November 02, 2020 6:54 PM
To: Burrows-Nuuanu, Leatrice W
Subject: HCC Contact:

First Name  

Kalio  

Last Name  

Resep  

Phone  

(808) 789-9712

Email  

Kalioresep22@gmail.com  

Subject  

A Request to be on the "J" Agenda  

Message  

I would like to be on the j agenda  

J-5



Ms. Jojo Tanimoto 
P.O. Box 44337 

Kawaihae, Hawaii   96743 
Email:  Guavaland622@gmail.com 

October 19, 2020 

Hawaiian Homes Commission 
91-5420 Kapolei Parkway
Kapolei, Hawaii   96707

Aloha All 

Re:  Issues in Kawaihae 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on projects happening to us in Kawaihae.  We hope the 
Commissioners and the Department of Hawaiian Homelands will advocate for our issues. 

I would like to bring up 3 issues: 
1. A conflict with trespassing on the cemented road to the mauka Water Tank.

This is our potable water resource for the residents up here. Those of us who live up there,
would like the trespassers to stop accessing this roadway.  Over the years, this complaint has
fallen on deaf ears.  We have suggested installing a gate at Kalo’olo’o Road; with fencing to the
road guardrail at the end of the street; to deter anymore trespassing.

A) This has been an on-going problem with no end.  In recent years, we understand that the
Kailapa Community Association worked toward fencing Feral animals.  I come home for lunch
one day and find a helicopter flying around the pu’u next door.  So I called the FAA to report this
action; along with the noise and the vibration shaking my home. The District Waimea Office
didn’t know anything.  My complaint was information to them.  Not too long after that, there’s a
large fire.  Took from early morning, and into the night to fight this fire

B) As usual, there are trucks, ATV’s, “Mules (4 wheel version of golf cart)”-parking on the
cement road and off, blocking the fire trucks.  So they used helicopters, again.

The last two fire incidents this year was behind my home (behind the water tank too), in the 
Kai Opae Gulch (my boundary line).  The fire trucks used my driveway to access these fires 
because the water tank road was blocked with on-lookers. 

C). I have reported youngsters riding their parents’ ATVs on this steep, narrow road. It is 
dangerous, no supervision, at night as well.  Also, we see trucks with trailers carrying loose dogs, 
weed poison, guns, etc.  We don’t think it safe for our families and pets. 

We are happy we can report, last week DHHL is working on a bid process to provide a gate. 
During that process, we would like clarity. 
a) if the proposal is at Kalo’olo’o Road or up a ways to the cement posts that have been there,

doing nothing.

J-6

mailto:Guavaland622@gmail.com


b) I am not sure if it includes fencing to the end of the Kalo’olo’o road.   
c) I am not sure if it includes removing the gate above the water tank, which is a recent 

installation since the feral animal project, This gate needs to move elsewhere.  There are 
a few locks to this gate; which indicate people intend to access this road anyway. 

 
2. The second issue has to do with the Kawaihae Regional Plan-2010.  In researching other matters 

about Kawaihae homelands, I found that 7,600 acres of land is leased, or right of entry, or 
something is happening.  This land is proposed for renewable energy.  My question is:  What 
about the By Pass road that was planned on the first Regional Plan?  We need help getting out 
of the tsunami zone here.  What happens now?  Who has this lease the County Property Tax 
Office says Kahua Ranch), and can we get the By Pass Road alignment, at least.   

 
In recent years, the Kawaihae Harbor road had to be closed because of flooding.  All the traffic 
from Kohala to Kawaihae had to be re-routed back toward Kohala; perhaps 40 miles and 40 
minutes to work (time and gas at $3.99 a gal.).  If there’s an accident, we get deterred.  If it 
rains, we get deterred.  Now the land is not available?  The State DOT already spent for survey, 
the Army already removed unexploded ordinance because of SDOT.   
 

3. Lastly, the Kawaihae Cement Co. issues.  The Hawaiian Homes Commission ACT, 1920, as 
amended is …for the betterment of conditions for the native Hawaiians… 
a) This Company is required to possess a National Pollution Environment Discharge Permit 

(NPDES).  I echo the homesteader’s concerns and hope DHHL will make sure that all of their 
Pollution, stay within their boundaries-no more Whoops, it leaked.  The sooner the better. 
 

b) It seems DHHL decided to continue a sub-lease without a Lessee.  (I have not found minutes 
where the Commission was aware or voted to continue a Sub-Lease; which seems very 
awkward).  It happens that the NPDES issues begin on this lot. 

 
I did not see any Beneficiary Consultation for this Sub-Lease action.  We have made 
complaints since I moved here 30 years ago.  The beneficiaries should have had a chance to 
have their complaints considered; instead of opposing.  The original lease for the Industrial 
use on Commercial zone; was there before the subdivision. but, the subdivision was there 
before the decision to continue the Sub-Lease. 
 
My complaint has to do with the cement dust that flies across Akoni Pule Highway; onto the 
traffic and those homes across the street.  Kawaihae is known for the strong Mumuku winds 
in the winter season.  So, now is Mumuku windy season.  (My neighbor’s roof flew across 
the street when they were building).  This company used cement blocks to block the dust. 
stacked 5 high.  Currently, there are no blocks or one-tier of blocks.  Can this Commission 
and DHHL use their authority and fix this problem?  It is a known phenomena; and steps 
need to be taken to prevent this from happening. 
 
Mahalo for this opportunity. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Jojo Tanimoto 
Kawaihae mauka  Lessee 


	Agenda
	C ITEMS
	C-1
	C-2

	D ITEMS
	D-1
	D-2
	D-3
	D-4
	D-5
	D-6
	D-7
	D-8
	D-9
	D-10
	D-11
	D-12

	E ITEMS
	E-1

	F ITEMS
	G ITEMS
	G-1

	J ITEMS



